
MINUTES OF THE
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

POPULATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

August 16, 2005
MAG Office, Suite 200, Saguaro Room

302 North 1st Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona

MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

  George Pettit, Gilbert, Chairman 
*Bryant Powell, Apache Junction
*Connie Randall, Avondale
*Brian Rose, Buckeye
  Gary Neiss, Carefree
*Ian Cordwell, Cave Creek
*David DeLaTorre, Chandler
  Mark Smith, El Mirage
*Ken Valverde, Fountain Hills
/Bev Turner, Gila Bend
*Terry Yergan, Gila River Indian Community
**Kate Langford, Glendale
** Brett Burningham, Goodyear
** Gary Smith, Guadalupe
  

    Sonny Culbreth, Litchfield Park
  Wahid Alam, Mesa
 *Matt Holm, Maricopa County
  Prisila Ferreira, Peoria
  Tim Tilton, Phoenix
  Shawny Ekadis, Queen Creek
*Stacey Gubser, Salt River Pima-Maricopa
    Indian  Community
  Harry Higgins, Scottsdale 
  Stephanie Wilson, Surprise
  Hector Tapia, Tempe
*Matt Moric, Wickenburg
Mark Fooks, Youngtown

 Ann McCracken, Valley Metro

 
* Not in attendance
** Participated via audioconference
/Participated via videoconference

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Karen Flores, Peoria
Max Enterline, Phoenix
Jay Occhiogrosso, Census Bureau

**Dennis Schwanz, Census Bureau
Phil Garthright, Consultant
Rita Walton, MAG
Harry Wolfe, MAG

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Prisila Ferreira at 9:08 a.m.
2. Call to the Audience

No comments from the audience were offered.



3. Approval of Meeting Minutes of July 19, 2005

It was moved by Mark Fooks and seconded by Harry Higgins to approve the meeting minutes of
July 19, 2005.  The motion carried unanimously.

4a. 2005 Census Survey

Heidi Pahl provided an update on preparations for the Census Survey.  She described the Census kickoff
meeting held on August 9, 2005 and other promotional efforts.  

 
4b. Group Quarters and Outdoor Locations

Harry Wolfe stated that a letter to representatives of group quarters has been prepared requesting their
cooperation during the enumeration.   Heidi Pahl said that the letter will be sent out on August 23, 2005
and a copy of it is posted on the MAG Web site.  She also noted that the count of population in group
quarters would take place between September 15-30, 2005 and would be conducted by telephone. 

Jay Occhiogrosso said that the Census Bureau had called the group quarters to confirm their contact
information.  Heidi Pahl added that the Census Bureau would be combining the lists of group quarters
provided to them from member agencies with the list of group quarters that the Census Bureau
maintains. 

Ms. Pahl commented that the count of population in outdoor locations would take place early morning
on September 8, 2005 between midnight and 6:00 a.m.  She said that 200 workers will be hired and that
they would be traveling in two persons teams.  Ms. Pahl said that a count of the people in outdoor
locations would be taken but no additional information would be solicited from them.

Heidi Pahl said that the Census Bureau was still looking for volunteers to serve as gatekeepers who
could help gain access to outdoor locations used by persons without housing and obtain the cooperation
of those being counted.  She said that the names of any potential gatekeepers should be provided by
August 31, 2005.

Jay Occhiogrosso noted that no training would be needed for gatekeepers. 

4c. Updates to Annexations

Harry Wolfe said that annexations from member agencies had been received and documentation
forwarded to the Census Bureau.  He said that he believed that he had received all the annexations
anticipated to take effect on or before September 1, 2005.  However, he pointed out that MAG needs
to provide the Census Bureau with any new annexations by September 8, 2005. 

4d. Identification of Locations of Access-Restricted Communities

Harry Wolfe said that MAG has assembled a list of access-restricted communities to assist Census
Bureau in gaining access to residences that need to be visited by a census worker.  He said that although



most member agencies had provided lists and addresses of access-restricted communities, the Census
Bureau also wanted to have the name of a contact person and a telephone number.  He added that the
information was needed and should be sent to him at MAG by Friday, August 26, 2005.

4e. New Construction

Harry Wolfe noted that the Census Bureau will credit member agencies with any housing units
constructed and ready for occupancy through September 1, 2005 and that it is crucial that any
completions issued by September 1, 2005 be provided to MAG as soon as possible.  The deadline for
providing the residential completions to MAG is September 8, 2005.

Wahid Alam commented that Mesa always had its completions ready and that this request was no
different than others made by MAG in the past.  Rita Walton pointed out that the difference was that we
were asking for the completions earlier.  She explained that normally we would not ask for the permit
completions until November 1, 2005.  But since we need to capture all new units constructed and ready
for occupancy up to and including September 1, 2005. 

5. Data Collection for July 1, 2005 Resident Population Estimates

Harry Wolfe reviewed the DES data collection process. He said that MAG had provided DES with data
for residential completions, annexations and population in group quarters and the associated
documentation.  Mr. Wolfe also remarked that DES audit staff was in the process of conducting audits
of residential completions.  He said that the audits were being conducted for jurisdictions throughout
the state.  He said that DES wanted to review paper copies of the permit completios.

6. Next Meeting of the MAG POPTAC

George Pettit said that the next meeting of the MAG POPTAC was scheduled for Tuesday, September
20, 2005 at 9:00 a.m.

The meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m.




